VILLAGE OF CAROLINE
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
Friday, March 5th, 2021, 10:00 am
Village of Caroline Council Chambers, 5004-50 Ave.

Page #
1. CALLTO ORDER
2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA:
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES:
3.1. Council Meeting Minutes February 19th, 2021 1-3
4. DELEGATION(S):
4.1 None
5. STAFF REPORTS
5.1 CAO Report 4
] COMMITTEE & BOARD REPORTS:
6.1 Mayor Report
6.2 Councillor Reports
7 BUSINESS:
7.1 Request for Public Release of intermunicipal Negotiation Meeting Notes 5-7
7.2 Reinstatement of 1976 Coal Development Policy 8-12
8 DISCUSSION, CORRESPONDENCE, INFORMATION ITEMS:
8.1 AUMA: preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 budget 13-34
8.2 Letier of request concerning RCMP 35-36

9 CLOSED SESSION
Nene

10  ADJOURNMENT






VILLAGE OF CAROLINE COUNCIL

P1
Minutes of Regular Council Meeting of Village Council, Province of Alberta, held on February 19, 2021 at
10:00am at the Village Office, 5004-50 Avenue, Caroline, Arlberta and information posted on Village Facebook
Page for public live stream for attendees through hitps://attendee.gotowebinar.com/registration.
Meeting Location: 5004-50 Ave,
Virtual Attendance:
Councilors: Mayor Rimmer, Deputy Mayor Nichols, Mary Bugbee, Corby Parsons, Mary Ann Wold, CAD Craig
Curtis; ’
In Person Attendance:
Municipal Clerk Cindy Cunningham
Delegation(s): None
Public Attendees:
1. Cailto Order
Mayor Rimmer called the meeting to order at 10:08 am
2. Adoption of Agenda
Motion 038 02 21
Moved by Councilor Bughee to adopt Agenda as presented.
CARRIED
3. Adoption of Minutes
Motion 03902 21
Moved by Councilor Wold to adopt Feb 5, 2021 regular Council meeting minutes as presented.
CARRIED
4. Delegations):
4.1 None
5. Staff Reports
5.1. CAC Report
Verbal report summary of written CAO Report.
5.2. Foreman’s Report
Motion 04002 21
Moved by Councilor Bugbee to accept the Staff reports as information,
CARRIED

6. Committee & Board Reports

6.1 Mayor Report
e  Early Childhood & Daycare funding
¢  Qutdoor Rink

6.2 Council Reports

Councilor Bughee

Page 1 of3



P2 VILLAGE OF CAROLINE COUNCIL

Minutes of Regular Council Meeting of Village Council, Province of Alberta, held on February 19, 2021 at
10:00am at the Village Office, 5004-50 Avenue, Caroline, Alberta and information posted on Village Facebook
Page for public live stream for attendees through hitps://attendee.gotowebinar.com/registration.

e Neighborhood Place meeting
Councilor Nichols

e Ag Society meeting

* Multiple vehicles on 49 ave broken into
Councilor Wold

s Neighborhood Place meeting

o Watched the online amalgamation regional study
Councilor Parsons

¢+  Nothing to Report

Motion 041 02 21
Moved by Councilor Wold to accept Mayor and Council reports as presented.

CARRIED

7. Business
7.1. Consolidation and Revision Authority Bylaw 2021-01 ~ 3™ Reading

Motion 042 02 21

Moved by Councilor Bugbee that Council approve third and final reading to the Consolidation and Revision
Authaority Bylaw #2021-01.

CARRIED
Recess called at 11:08am — due to Technical difficulties with the Webinar
Meeting resumed at 11:20am
7.2. Village Assessor Bylaw 2021-02
Motion 043 02 21
Moved by Councilor Nichols that Council approve third and final reading of the Village Assessor Bylaw #2021-
02.
CARRIED
7.3. Procedural Bylaw Revisions: Bylaw 2020-003A
Motion 044 02 21
Moved by Councilor Parsons that Council approve third and final reading to amending Bylaw #2020-003A.
CARRIED

8. Discussion, Correspondence, and Information ltems
8.1 Letter from Reeve Sawchuk of the Municipal District of Bonnyville #87
8.2 Letter from Mayor Snodgrass of High River — 1976 Coal Development Policy

Motion 045 02 21

Page 2 of 3



VILLAGE OF CAROLINE COUNCIL P3

Minutes of Regular Council Meeting of Village Council, Province of Alberta, held on February 19, 2021 at
10:00am at the Village Office, 5004-50 Avenue, Caroline, Alberta and information posted on Village Facebook
Page for public live stream for attendees through https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/registration.

Moved by Councilor Rimmer to discuss item 8.1 with Council at practice webinar on Tuesday Feb 23, 2021 at
9:30 am.

CARRIED
Motion 046 02 21

Moved by Councilor Bugbee to Table Item 8.2 until next regular Council Meeting.

CARRIED

9, Closed Session
9.1 None

10. Adjournment

Motion 047 02 21
Moved by Councilor Nichols fo adjourn the meeting.

CARRIED

Time of Adjournment: 11:48am

MAYOR

CAO

Page3 of3



CAO REPORT
February 19th to March 5™,

e The announcement of the Provincial Budget is always of major interest to
municipalities. This year’s budget represents very little change in 2021 and
is obviously designed to avoid controversy during the Covid19 Pandemic,
However, there are significant reductions projected in the future. From a
municipal perspective the key issues are as follows.

*The MS! capital funding has been increased for 2021/2022 and will be
reduced by over 40% in the next two years. The MS| Operating Grant
remains constant over three years.

*The Provincial Education mill rate has remained the same as last year. This
will create a small saving for our taxpayers and reverses an earlier proposal
for a 2% increase.

*ECSS funding has remained stable, which is very important for the sociali
service agencies and seniors’ facilities in the region.

*The Community Facility Enhancement Program has been reduced by 24%
but will increase again in the following two years.

*There are significant reductions in funding for affordable and seniors’
housing. '

e Administration has submitted a grant application to Fortis Alberta under its
Tree Planting Program.

e The Town of Rocky Mountain House has requested the County and the
Village to publicly release the Summary Notes from the confidential
Intermunicipal Negotiations since 2019.The motivation for this request is
not clear. There is no advantage from an administrative perspective.

e The Administration has submitted a grant application to the Federal Healthy
Community Program to assist in Downtown Revitalization.

e The lease agreement with the Museum Society has been finalized and will
be brought to Council for final approval.



To: Village Council
From: Craig Curtis, CAO

Re: Request for Public Release of Intermunicipal Negotiation
Meeting Notes.

Date: February 28th, 2021

The Village has received a letter dated February 12 from the Mayor of the Town
of Rocky Mountain House requesting the release of the Intermunicipal
Negotiation Summary Notes, starting with the first negotiation meeting on
October 11, 2019 up to the most recent. Under current protocols, it is stated that
the notes are confidential, unless mutually agreed by the parties.

Administration does not understand the motivation behind this request. It does
not believe that the release of the Summary Notes would serve any useful
purpose, other than add confusion.

Recommendation:

That the Council of the Village of Caroline deny the request by the Town of Rocky

Mountain House to release the Intermunicipal Negotiation Summary Notes from
October 2019 to the present.

P5



TOWN OF ROCKY MOUNTAIN HOUSE

POBOX 1509 511650 AVENUE ROCKY MOUNTAIN HOUSE AB T4T 1B2
February 12, 2021

Village of Caroline Mayor and Council
5004 — 50 Avenue, Box 148
Caroline, AB TOM OMO

Email: jrimmer@villageofcaroline.com

Dear Mayor Rimmer and Council,

At the February 9, 2021, Regular Council Meeting, a resolution was brought forward, for the public
release of Negotiation Summary Notes, a record of the intermunicipal negotiations on regional
agreements. Although typically confidential, the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy
Act (FOIP), allows for these Summary Notes to be disclosed, with the consent of all parties.

These FOIP considerations are reflected in the Town of Rocky Mountain House, Clearwater County
and Village of Caroline’s Collaborative Discussions/Negotiation Protocols, under Sections 24 and 34
of the tri-party protocols, It is explicitly stated that the notes are confidential unless mutually
agreed by the parties, either for evidence in any other proceeding or to release the Information. In
this case, all three municipalities would need to agree to the release of these Summary Notes.

Considering these Protocols, Town Council has passed a resolution to release the Summary Notes,

upon the appropriate approvals from Clearwater County and the Village of Caroline. The resolution
passed by the Town reads as follows:

Res 2021-067
Moved by Councillor Michelle Narang

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council approve the public release of the tri-party
negotiation Summary Notes, starting with the first negotiation meeting on October
11, 2019, to the most recent approved Summary Notes, subject to the consent of
Clearwater County and the Village of Caroline and,

Further,

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council approve the public release of the County and Town
negotiation Summary Notes starting with the first negotiation meeting on March 11,
2020, to the most recent approved Summary Notes, subject to the consent of
Clearwater County and,

Further,

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council advises Clearwater County and the Village of
Caroline of the Town’s consent to publicly release the negotiation Summary Notes
and request their consideration of the same.

CARRIED,



Page 2 of 2

Subsequent to this resolution, the Town of Rocky Mountain House respectfully requests the
express, written consent from the Village of Caroline, to release the Summary Notes, as referenced
above, A separate request will also be sent to Clearwater County, for the same.

Should you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to me at
tburke@rockymtnhouse or by phone at 403-846-8129 or alternately, you are welcome to contact
Dean Krause, CAO, at 403-845-2866, ext. 267, or by emall at dkrause@rockymtnhouse.com.

Sincerely,
(:B?LMJXQM\)\&Q

Mayor Tammy Burke

CC: Town of Rocky Mountain House Council
Clearwater County Councll
Craig Curtis, Village of Caroline
Rick Emmons, CAO, Clearwater County
Dean Krause, CAO, Town of Rocky Mountain House

Telephone 403-845-2866 Fax 403-845-3230
Webpoge: www.rockymtnhouse.com  E-mail: town@rockymtnhouse.com

P7



P8

To: Village Council
From: Craig Curtis, CAO
Re: Reinstatement of 1976 Coal Development Policy.

Date: February 28th, 2021

The Village has received a letter dated February 3 from the Mayor of High River
requesting the Village to consider drafting a letter of support to the Government
of Alberta for an immediate Exploration Stop Work Order, as well as the
reinstatement of the 1976 Coal Development Policy.

The Province has since reinstated the former Coal Development Policy and
initiated a consultation process. Administration is not certain regarding how many
exploration permits have been granted.

It is considered that coal exploration could cause irreparable damage to the
landscapes and watersheds in the Eastern Slopes. Consequently, any change in
policy should be very carefully considered and no further exploration permits
should be issued at this time.

Recommendation:

That the Council of the Village of Caroline support the reinstatement of the 1976
Coal Development Policy and express concern to the Province that coal miningin
the Eastern Slopes could cause damage to its landscapes and watersheds, and
request that an extensive public consultation take place prior to any policy
changes being made or any new exploration permits being issued.



AT T

: 3098 Macleod Trall SW
ngh l Rlver High River, Alberta Canada TIV 125
P:403.652.2110  F1403.652,2396
www.highriverca

4' "'r.-.-..hh

February 3, 2021

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

VIA EMAIL: Info@villageofcaroline.com
Office of the Mayor,

Village of Caroline

PO Box 148

Caroline, AB TOM OMO

Attention: Mayor John Rimmer

RE: Relnstatement of the 1976 Coal Development Policy

Dear His Worship:

In June of 2020, the Government of Alberta rescinded the Coal Development Policy (Coal Policy)
without adequate consultation with First Nations, environmental groups, residents, property owners
and local governments, This policy was originally developed with the intended purpose to guide coal
extraction along the eastern slopes of the Rockies based upon a land use classification system and
dictated where and how coal leasing, exploration and development could occur.

The Coal Policy introduced in 1976, gulded coal extraction in one of the most important landscapes
in Alberta and Canada. The Eastern Slopes provides water to users from the Rockies to the Hudson
Bay. For 44 years, the policy provided essential.protection of valuable water resources, ensuring
downstream communities had access to clean drinking water, that farmers had access fo irrigation

water to protect their livelihoods and that ecosystems that tourists come to experience remained in
thelir pristine state.

The rescindment of any policy that affeots public lands and/or water resources, requires public
consultation with First Nations, environmental groups, residents of Alberta, properly owners and
local municipalities. Without that consultation, our democratic processes are undermined.

In response to the Government of Alberta's action, the Town of High River's Council adopted the
following resolution at its Regular Meeting of Council on January 11, 2021

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council direct Adminiistration to draft a letter to Premier Jason

Kenney, requesting the immediate reinstatement of the 1976 Alberta Coal Policy which
was rescindec on June 1, 2020;

P77



P10
P78

AND THAT the letter requests that the Government of Alberta begin public consultation
with Indigenous groups, environmental groups and all stakeholders in Alberta on any
proposed revisions or replacement to this policy;

AND FURTHER THATthis letter be sent to the Minister of Environment & Parks
Honorable fason Nixon, Minister of Energy Henourable Sonya Savage as well as the
MLA for Livingstone-Macieod Roger Reid.

This letter was sent to the Premler and Ministers on lanuary 12, 2021 and a meeling has heen

requested with the Premier. To date, the Town of High River has neither received a response 1o our
letter nor a meeting with the Premier.

Other local governments, public officials and Albertans have called upon the Government of Alberta
10 teinstate the Coal Policy. In response, the Government of Alberta has cancelled some of the coai
leases but this is not adequate in order to protect water resources for downstream communities,

- such as High River,

Therefore, at the February 1, 2021 Special Meeting:of Coundll, the following resolution was adopted:

WHEREAS Council adopted resolution #RC 14 -2021 requesting the Province of Alberta
Immediately re-instate the 1976 Coal Development Policy;

AND WHEREAS coal exploration and open plt mining will Impact water resources for
downstream communities affecting businesses, residents, ranchers, farmers and
ecosystems;

AND WHEREAS coal exploration Is causing r'rreparéble damage to the landscapes and
watersheds as well as adversely affecting the public's access, use and enjoyment of
Crown lands on the Eastern Slopes of Alberta;

AND WHERFEAS local First Nations groups, muticipalities, landowners and ranchers are
tegally challenging the Province's rescindment of the L976 Coal Policy In the Courts;

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council request all coal exploration be Immediately ceased on
the Fastern Slopes of Alberta and cease issuance of any new exploration permits on the

Eastern Slopes of Alberta untif public consultation has taken place regarding the futtre
of coal mining on the Eastern Slopes of Alberta;

AND THAT Council request the Government of Alberta & Premier Jason Kenney Isste an
immediate stop work order for all existing coal exploration permits on the Eastern
Slopes of Alberta and cease Issuance of any new exploration permits on the Eastern
Slopes of Alberta until public consultation has taken place regarding the future of coal
mining on the Eastern Slopes of Alberta;

AND THAT Council direct Adminlstration to Investigate legal options relating to the
damage caused due to exploration on Alberta’s Eastern Slopes.

AND FURTHER THAT Council direct Administration to prepare a letter with a copy of this
resolution to all members of the Federation of Canadian Municipalities, Alberta Urban
Municipalities Association, Rural Municipalities of Albetta, Municipalities of
Saskatchewan, Saskatchewan Association of Rural Municipalities and Association of

Manitoba Municipalities requesting their support to re-instate the 1976 Coal
Development Paolicy.



P79P”

I light of this resolution, the Town of High River is respectfully requesting that you consider drafting
a letter of support to the Government of Aiberta for the immediate Exploration Stop Work Order as
well as he relnstatement of the Coal Policy.

Thanlk you for cohsidering our request,

Sincerely,

Craig Snodgrass
Mayor

CS/op/kr




P12 ,
Cindz Cunningham

From: Louise Albert <LAlbert@highriver.ca>

Sent: March 2, 2021 3:39 PM

To: Cindy Cunningham

Subject: Have Your Say - Update on Alberta Coal Policy

Dear Mayor John Rimmer:

Further to my letter dated February 3, 20241, | confirm that the Government of Alberta reinstated the Coal Policy on
February 8, 20241.. While this is a positive step, we must continue to be actively involved in protecting the Eastern
Slopes of the Rockies. While the Coal Policy has been reinstated, coal exploration in these areas continues, which is
concerning.

The Government of Alberta has indicated that it will begin public consultation on March 29, 2021. Please continue
to send letters and have your voice heard as part of these discussions. We must ensure that these lands are
protected for future generations to come.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me directly.

Thank you,
Louise Albert on behalf of Mayor Craig Snodgrass

Craig Snodgrass
Mayor of High River

High Pl River

“Doing It Better, Being Innovative & Daring To Be Different”
Ph: 403.603.3413

www.choosehighriver.ca
www.highriver.ca




Preliminary Analysis of the
Government of Alberta’s
2021 Budget

February 26, 2021




P14 Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 Budget

Contents
I T O T UC I OM oottt sse s s e v s e e b e teesseassessessess et s essee st ssaes s s sem e sensessemsssseasasaessasabsnAsa s b ab s b e b e sse b eb e b e s e b e nss s s brnsnnte

Priorities for Alberta’s Municipal GOVEINMENTS........cwrmiiresiesssiss s sssssssssssissssssssenss 3
Planning for your community's financial fUtUIe .............covivnermnrisnsssisssississssssssisssssssinis 0
Core Capital Funding to Municipal GOVOrMIMEBITS sw.mmimssssismisminsssisssiismmnisimssismmssiismissmeisisisions 6
Core Operating Funding to Municipal GOVEINMENTS ... i |
Municipal Sustainability Initiative: Three More YEars ... 8
Local Government Fiscal Framework: Deferred and Funding Reduced.......cvrncrcccsiinisiinnennn. 9
Education Praperty Tax. FIOZEREN]. ..cuummimiismmmnumnmissmi i, 10
Notable Funding to CommMUNIty ENTIHIES ... ssssssssssssssssissssssssssssssssmmssessess |2
Good to Know: An Overview of the 2021 FISCal PLaMN c...cmmmemammscmmmsissmusssessmassesssssusassssssssesssosssasonnss. 19




Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 Budgetp1 5

Introduction

Leading up to the release of the 2021 budget, senior elected provincial officials repeatedly
indicated that the budget would focus on the COVID-19 pandemic along with initiatives aimed
at getting the economy back on its feet and supporting economic growth. Those two pillars,
often characterized as protecting lives and livelihoods, combined with a commitment to fiscal
accountability are the three predominant themes of the 2021 budget.

Talk of a "fiscal reckoning” which featured prominently in government messaging a year ago is
absent from this budget and plans to balance the budget by the end of the government’s term
have been abandoned. In their place are three new “fiscal policy anchors™:

1. Keeping net debt-to-GDP below 30 per cent,

2. Gradually bringing spending in line with other provinces, and

3. Releasing a balanced budget plan once the pandemic ends.

As part of economic recovery, the budget commits to no new taxes and maintaining Alberta’s
place as the lowest overall tax regime in Canada. Any consideration of a broader conversation
on Alberta’s revenue and taxation system has been pushed to the post-pandemic period.

On the spending side, the government remains committed to bringing per capita spending in
line with the level of other large Canadian provinces. The challenge with this approach is that
strategic investments are required in urban centers large and small throughout Alberta to
enable social and economic recovery.

This document includes AUMA's preliminary analysis of Budget 2021 as it relates to municipal
priorities and the financial future of Alberta communities. In addition, it summarizes the

province's fiscal outlook and includes highlights of the ministry business plans that most impact
our communities.

Priorities for Alberta’s Municipal Governments

Stable and long-term predictable funding

As stated in our pre-budget submission, municipalities are seeking long-term stable and
predictable funding. Passed in the fall of 2019, the Local Government Fiscal Framework Act
(LGFF), while not perfect, promised the type of funding that AUMA has, for the last 15 to 20
years, been advocating for - that is funding that is sustainable, predictable, and legislated.

That is why we are disappointed with the province's decision to extend the Municipal
Sustainability Initiative (MSI) for an additional two years and in turn delay the implementation of
LGFF. After finally achieving a sustainable, predictable, and legislated funding regime, the
province has decided to rescind that commitment before the legislation was even proclaimed.
While MSI will increase by $233 million this year, declines in the next two years mean that
municipalities will lose out on approximately $414 million in funding over the next three years




P16

Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 Budget

compared to what was planned in last year's budget. The government is messaging the change
as a 25 per cent reduction spread over three years with the average amount being $722 million
per year. Adding to the disappointment, the province plans to reduce LGFF's starting baseline
funding from $860 million to $722 million when the program launches. The delay is also a
missed opportunity to reallocate investment to municipalities who need it most. More details
are available in the capital funding section of this report.

Holding the line on property taxes for now

We are relieved that the province is holding its share of the provincial education property tax
requisition flat this year. In Budget 2020, education property tax was originally set to increase to
account for population growth and inflation. However, with the onset of the pandemic, the
Government of Alberta decided to freeze property tax revenue at 2019-20 levels. With the
pandemic still affecting numerous households and businesses, this revenue amount will
continue to be frozen. Municipalities are making the tough decisions to minimize property tax
increases and we are pleased the province is supporting these efforts by not increasing their
take from municipal ratepayers this year. However, we note that revenues from education

property taxes are set to creep up in subsequent years despite estimates that K-12 education
costs will not increase.

Disaster Recovery Program

While some grants have been maintained, the planned changes to the Disaster Recovery
Program (DRP) will result in a transferring of costs to municipalities. Presently, the province
funds 100 per cent of the program so any movement towards a cost-sharing model will result in
a new financial burden being placed on communities.

Policing '

Budget 2021 maintains funding for police grants at the same level as in 2020: $30 million for the
Police Officer Grant and $59.2 million for the Municipal Policing Assistance Grant. The new
police funding model introduced in 2020 will raise an additional $11.3 million in 2021. Last year,
the model raised $15.4 million, which was used to hire 76 regular members and 57 new civilian
support positions in the RCMP. The $26.7 million raised in 2021 will be used to hire 55 regular
members and 42 support staff for the RCMP. AUMA is concerned that there will be fewer hires
this year compared to 2020, despite increased revenue. AUMA is advocating that there be a
balance of resource expenditures in comparison to collected revenues.

Affordable Housing

Budget 2021 commits the province to transforming the affordable housing system through the
creation of affordable housing and real estate asset management strategic plans. This includes
implementing the Affordable Housing Review Panel's recommendations to increase the
affordable housing supply and support better housing outcomes for Albertans. However, as
provincial capital funding for affordable housing is projected to decrease by 79 per cent over
two years, AUMA expects that the non-profit and private sectors will be asked to take on a
greater role in building and operating affordable housing.




Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 BudgetP 1 7

The 2021 strategic plan states that the province is responsible for ensuring Albertans have
access to high quality services such as affordable housing and supports for vulnerable and
marginalized people. Despite this commitment, no funding has been allocated to the City of

Edmonton to help operate the supportive housing units being built under the federal Rapid
Housing Initiative.

Opioid Crisis

Municipalities are concerned about the record number of Albertans who are dying because of
the opioid crisis. The provincial death toll surged to 997 by the end of November 2020, with one
month worth of data yet to be disclosed. This surpasses the previous yearly record in 2018 — in
which 806 deaths were recorded — by almost 24 per cent. While Budget 2021 maintains the
province’s original plan of allocating $140 million over four years in addiction recovery
programs, it does not address the immediate opioid crisis and skyrocketing number of deaths. A
portion of $24 million provided by the federal government will go toward Alberta’s opioid-
related strategy; however, no specifics were provided as to how these funds will be used.

Mental Health

We do acknowledge that the budget does pledge to implement the recommendations of the
Mental Health and Addiction Advisory Council to increase access to recovery-oriented addiction
recovery and mental health services, while investing $40 million to support treatment and

recovery services along with $34 million for children's health supports to expand mental health
and rehabilitation.

Municipalities large and small are united in their concern about the mental health of their

residents. AUMA will seek ways to work with the province and other partners to enhance mental
health support.

Local elections not so local

AUMA is disappointed to note that Budget 2021 reconfirms that Senate elections and
referendums will be held at the same time as local elections despite advice that this will detract
from essential discussions on local issues. While few details are available, AUMA understands
that Municipal Affairs has increased funding under the Alberta Community Partnership to

include $10 million for municipal initiatives associated with the Referendum Act and Senate
Election Act.

Avoiding Some Transferring of Costs and Responsibilities to Municipalities

When faced with fiscal pressures, governments across Canada have a history of downloading
their costs and responsibilities onto lower levels of government. AUMA is satisfied that the
province is maintaining support levels for Family and Community Support Services (FCSS) and
library operating grants. After significant reductions in previous years, the province has held
funding flat for Grants in Place of Taxes (GIPOT). Reductions in GIPOT have had a detrimental
effect on many municipalities sending some small communities with a significant proportion of
tax-exempt properties over a fiscal cliff. AUMA will continue to monitor the cumulative effects of
a wide variety of provincial funding decisions on municipalities.




P18 Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 Budget

Planning for your community’s financial future

Core Capital Funding to Municipal Governments

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 QPAZARVH

Cepital Brograrm(¥milliions) Budget Budget Forecast Forecast 2020

Municipal Sustainability Initiative Capital 963 1,196 485 485 233
Water for Life 51 42 11 43 (9)
Municipal Water and Wastewater Partnership 14 75 35 17 61
Strategic Transportation Infrastructure Program 15 43 35 25 28
Alberta Community Resilience Program 20 - - - (20)
First Nations Water Tie-In Program 13 7 30 - (6)

Subtotal 1,076 1,363 596 570 287

26.7%  -56.3% -4.4%
Capital Funding Linked to Federal Funding Programs

Gas Tax Fund 244 255 255 266 11
GreenTRIP 60 30 18 = (30)
Public Transit Infrastructure Fund 44 21 1 - (23)
Clean Water Wastewater Fund 30 2 8 - (28)
New Building Canada Fund — Small Communities = - - 1 -
Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program 57 239 70 23 182
Edmonton and Calgary LRT 343 485 69 1,101 142

Subtotal 778 1,032 921 1,391 254

32.6% -10.8% 51.0%

Total — Core Capital Funding 1,854 2,395 1,517 1,961 541

29.2%  -36.7% 29.3%

Year-Over-Year Change in Municipal Capital Funding: Budget 2021 vs. Budget 2020

Municipal Sustainability Initiative Capital
Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program
Edmonton and Calgary LRT

Municipal Water Wastewater Partnership
Strategic Transportation Infrastructure Program

wn

_§ Gas Tax Fund

s First Nations Water Tie-In Program -6 0
& Water for Life Nl |

Alberta Community Resilience Program  -20 Il
Public Transit Infrastructure Fund -23 [l
Clean Water Wastewater Fund -28
GreenTRIP -30 [N




Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 BudgetP 1 9

Investments in municipal capital infrastructure will be $541 million higher than last year.
Approximately half of the increase is associated with increases in provincial funding, namely the
2021 increase in MSI funding, and the other half represents a ramp up of spending under
federally funded programs such as ICIP and the Edmonton and Calgary LRT.

Growth in capital funding

e The rise in 2021 MSI Capital was unexpected but is part of a multi-year reduction in
funding. See the section on MSI for more details.

e The increase in ICIP funding does not represent new dollars for municipalities. The
program is fully allocated and therefore, AUMA estimates that the increase has to do
with timing of progress in construction.

e The $142 million increase in Edmonton and Calgary LRT aligns with the plan set out in
Budget 2020.

e The increase in MWWWP is $53 million higher than what was forecasted in Budget 2020
and is likely associated with the province's mid-2020 announcement that MWWWP
would receive an additional $137 million to help kickstart the economy.

Reductions in capital funding

e Funding under the First Nations Water Tie-In Program will decline more than what was
forecasted in Budget 2020, but funding will ramp up to $30 million in 2022-23
representing the closure of the program.

o The $9 million reduction in Water for Life is unexpected as Budget 2020 had proposed
the funding would remain stable in 2021-22.

e The $20 million reduction in the Alberta Community Resilience Program was expected as
the program is now closed.

o The reductions in PTIF, CWWF, and GreenTRIP were expected as part of the end of the
current federal funding streams.

Core Operating Funding to Municipal Governments

Operating Program ($ millions) el URieed e 2
Budget  Budget Change

Alberta Community Partnership 16.5 25.4 53.9% 1
Emergency Management Preparedness Program 0.2 0.2 -2
Family and Community Support Services 100.0 100.0 -
Grants in Place of Taxes 30.2 30.0 -0.7% 3
Municipal Policing Assistance Grant 59.2 59.2 -
Municipal Sustainability Initiative — Operating 30.0 30.0 -
Police Officer Grant 30.0 30.0 .

Total — Core Operating Funding 266.1 274.8 3.3%




P20

Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 Budget

Notes to municipal operating funding

1. In addition to funding regional collaboration initiatives, intermunicipal collaboration and the
Municipal Internship Program, Budget 2021 increases ACP funding to add $10 million for
projects associated with the Senate Election Act and Referendum Act.

2. The program budget is $150,000 but is rounded up for presentation purposes.

3. After a 50 per cent cut in funding over the past two years, GIPOT is forecasted to remain at
$30 million per year for the next three years. The past reductions disproportionately
impacted communities with provincially owned properties that are exempt from property
tax. Property owners in those communities are now forced to subsidize a portion of the costs
of providing essential services such as policing, fire, water and waste management, and
transportation for Crown-owned properties.

Municipal Sustainability Initiative: Three More Years

2021 was scheduled to be the final year of the long-standing Municipal Sustainability Initiative
(MSI). To AUMA's disappointment, the Government of Alberta has chosen to extend MSI for an
additional two years resulting in the new Local Government Fiscal Framework (LGFF) being
delayed until 2024. Municipalities will receive strong support this year, but future funding will
diminish.

MSI Operating will remain constant at $30 million per year for the next three years. While MSI
Capital will increase to $1.2 billion this year, municipalities will experience a significant reduction
to only $485 million in both 2022 and 2023.

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

($ millions) Budget Budget . Target Target
MSI Capital (including BMTG)' 963 1,196 485 485
MSI Operating 30 30 30 30
993 1,226 515 515

Municipalities will have the flexibility to use the 2021 funding over future years, which is why the
province is communicating that municipalities will receive an average of $722 million per year
between 2021-22 and 2023-24.

Due to COVID-19 and other complexities, the 2021 MS| allocations will be calculated using the
2019 Municipal Affairs Population figures instead of 2020. While not available yet, AUMA is
hopeful that Alberta Municipal Affairs will continue to publish estimates of future MSI
allocations so that municipalities can plan appropriately.

TBMTG = Basic Municipal Transportation Grant, which is a component of the MSI program.




Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 Budgetp 2 1

Local Government Fiscal Framework: Deferred and Funding Reduced

In addition to the announcement that LGFF will be deferred until 2024, the Minister of Municipal
Affairs sent a letter to municipalities on February 25, 2021, which communicates that LGFF's
starting baseline funding will drop from $860 million to $722 million. This means that
municipalities will receive 36 per cent less funding per year under LGFF compared to the annual
average between 2011 and 2020.

At its start, the Local Government Fiscal Framework will deliver 36% less
funding than the average over the last 10 years
1,400
1,200

: | | I II] I ]
80 _ g | GFF Capital
60 m BMTG
a0 VST Capital
50 | | | I I === ]0-Year Historical Average

SR LR
m@@mw@@

Source: Budget 2021 Fiscal Plan and Alberta Municipal Affairs' MS| Allocation Tables

Notes: Advances of MSI Capital in March 2014 and 2018 are presented in the year that funding was available to municipalities. BMTG

amounts are included in the 2022 and 2023 MSI Capital figure.

$ Millions
o o o

(=}

R 0P o PP
NN

The changes have both short and long-term impacts. In the short-term, municipalities will
receive approximately $414 million less over the next three years compared to what was
proposed in last year's budget when LGFF was scheduled to start in 2022. This equates to a 16
per cent reduction in funding over three years. In the long-term, the reduction in baseline
funding will result in less growth of the funding pools, similar to earning less interest after you
withdraw funds from your bank account.

($ millions) 2021-22  2022-23 2023-24  3-Year Total
Tl MIS| Capital (incl. BMTG) 897 - -
PIOPI0N | GFF Capital - 860 8232
HETIIN S| Operating/LGFF Operating 30 30 30
927 890 853 2,670
CNELSTE 1 V1S| Capital (incl. BMTG) 1,196 485 485
2021 MSI Operating 30 30 30
Plan 1,226 515 515 2,256
Difference ($) (414)
Difference (%) -16%

2 AUMA's calculations based on the LGFF growth formula of 50% of the change in provincial revenues
from three years prior (2018-20 to 2020-21).




P22

Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 Budget

The changes in MSI and LGFF are particularly concerning considering AUMA's continual
conversations with the province about the need for municipalities to have adequate, predictable,
sustainable, and legislated funding to be able to effectively plan for the future of their
communities. Just like past years, municipalities will now be forced back to the drawing table to
devise new plans on how to fund the replacement and upgrades of local roads, water lines,
facilities, emergency equipment and other necessary capital needs. Once again, this highlights
the importance of having a funding model that is linked to provincial revenues instead of
current political priorities of the day. This also represents a missed opportunlty to shift the
funding structure to better meet the needs of Alberta’s communities.

AUMA will take this additional time to advocate for key improvements to the legislation,
particularly to seek a reversal of the reduction in funding and removal of the 50 per cent growth
rate restriction so that the funding will keep pace with local needs.

Education Property Tax: Frozen(ish)

AUMA is pleased that the
province will freeze education
property taxes at the 2019-20
level for one more year, Budget
2020 had proposed to increase

. $2,400 %
education property tax S 2200
requisitions by over $100 million = $2,000 I I I I I =
per year, but the province $1,800 l g
changed its plan shortly after the $1,600
A '3’

budget was released due to the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Provincial education property tax
(budgeted figures)
$2,800
$2,600

Millions

»

b\' (v)’
Q Y
'p

o
DD
However, Budget 2021 also announces that the province will start increasing provincial

education property tax by population growth and inflation starting next year, resulting in
forecasted increases of just over 3 per cent per year.

2019-20  2020-21 2021-22 2022-23  2023-24

($ millions) Actual Actual Budget Forecast Forecast
Provincial education property tax 2,475 2,472 $2,472 2,549 2,633
Year-over-year % change -0.1% - 3.1% 3.3%
K-12 education operating expense 8,134 8,191 8,248 8,248 8,248

Year-over-year % change 0.7% 0.7% - -




Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 BudgetP 2 3

The rise in provincial education property tax is disappointing because education costs are
estimated to remain flat. AUMA strongly advocated for the reversal of this planned increase last
year because it downloads the tax responsibility onto municipal governments instead of
exploring provincial revenue tools.

Provincial Education Property Tax as a % of K-12 Education
Operating Expense
(budgeted figures)

33.0%
32.0%
31.0%
30.0%
29.0%
28.0%
27.0%

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

Source; Calculations based on budgeted figures from the Government of Alberta’s Fiscal Plans for 2014-15 to 2021-22

The above chart highlights how the share of education operating costs covered by education tax
will rise from 29.2 per cent in 2014-15 up to 31.9 per cent in 2023-24. This plan shifts the burden

of taxation onto municipalities who are responsible to collect the revenue on behalf of the
province.

The provincial education property tax mill rates will remain the same with the

residential/farmland rate set at $2.56 per $1,000 of assessed value and the non-residential rate
set at $3.76 per $1,000 of assessed value.

Each municipality will be impacted to a different degree, with year-over-year changes in 2021
education tax requisitions ranging from a reduction of 23 per cent to an increase of 14 per cent.
Municipalities can view their 2021 provincial education property tax requisition by downloading
the comparison listing on the province's website.




P24 Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 Budget

Notable Funding to Community Entities

2020-21 2021-22 %
Budget  Budget Change

Funding for Community Entities ($ millions)

Agricultural Service Boards 8.5 8.5

Agricultural Societies and Exhibition Grants 11.5 115

Community and Regional Economic Support - - -1
Community Facility Enhancement Program 25.0 18.5 -26.0% 2
Community Initiatives Program 197 37.1 88.3%
Ground Search and Rescue Traihing Grant 0.2 0.2 - 3
Library Services — Operating 37.1 37.0 -0.3%
Legal Aid 943 94.3 -
Regional Economic Development Alliances 0.5 0.5 - 4

196.3 207.1 5.5%

Notes

1. The Community and Regional Economic Support (CARES) program was paused in 2020-21
and has no budget allocated for this year. '

2. The Community Facility Enhancement Program is a priority program for community _

organizations looking to update and maintain community-owned buildings such as halls and

recreation facilities. Prior to Budget 2019, the program was forecasted to be $38 million per

year, then it was reduced it to $25 million per year and is now reduced to $18.5 million in

2021. Fortunately, the program is scheduled to rise to $24 million for the next two years.

The program budget is $150,000 but is rounded up for presentation purposes.

4, Nine regional economic development alliances (REDAs) will each receive $50,000 in 2021-22
and 2022-23. This remains the same as 2020-21, but still represents a 50 per cent reduction
from what was delivered prior to Budget 2020.

W




Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 Budgetp 2 5

Good to Know: An Overview of the 2021 Fiscal Plan

The COVID-19 pandemic has stalled the province's plans to balance the budget by 2022-23. The
government’s 2021 Fiscal Plan involves a goal to keep net debt-to-GDP under 30 per cent,
aligning per capita spending with comparator provinces, and re-introducing a plan to balance
the budget after the pandemic.

Budget 2021 sets a target of a 3.3 per cent increase in revenue over 2020-21, primarily driven by
increases in resource revenue and other own-source revenue. Expenditures are targeted to be
one per cent less than 2020-21 but still $3 billion higher than 2019-20, driven by higher
healthcare spending.

The total deficit is estimated to be $18.2 billion in 2021-22, with it dropping to $8 billion by
2023-24, due to targeted growth in income taxes and resource revenue, with reductions in

spending below 2019-20 levels.

Statement of Operations®

($ millions) 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
. Revenue Actual Forecast Budget Target Target

Personal income tax 11,244 10,936 11,647 12,439 13,258
Corporate income tax 4,107 2,242 1,891 2,482 3,139
Other tax revenue 5,747 5,304 5,527 5,748 5,939
Resource revenue 5,937 1,978 2,856 4,718 5,869
Investment income 2,828 2,390 2,205 2,325 2,478
Premiums, fees, and licenses 3,929 3,960 4133 - 4,227 4,339
Other own-source revenue 3,360 4,105 5,257 5611 6,058
Federal transfers 9,072 11,381 10,181 9,872 9,785
Total revenue 46,224 42,296 43,697 47422 50,865

Expense by function
Health 22,408 25,230 24,357 23,106 23,123
Basic/advanced education 14,971 14,558 14,868 14,699 14,714
Social services 6,203 3,857 6,248 6,345 6,361
Other program expenses 12,893 16,745 14,050 11,452 11,611
Total program expense 56,475 60,390 59,523 55,602 55,809
Debt servicing costs 2,235 2,369 2,764 3,085 3,335
Pension Provisions (334) 271 (369) (283) (292)
Total Expense 58,376 62,488 61,918 58,404 58,852

Surplus / (Deficit) (12,152)  (20,192) (18,221) (10,982) (7,987)

37 Source: Government of Alberta 2021-24 Fiscal Plan, pg. 186




P26 Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 Budget

Budget 2021 - Capital Plan Envelopes’

Protect Quality Health Care
13%

Capital
Maintenance and

Renewal
17%

Roads and
Bridges

/ 14%

Renewing
Educational
Infrastructure

/ 9%
S

treamlining
Service Delivery
5%

Public Safety and

Emergency
Services
Municipal 3%
Infrastructure Agriculture and
Support atural Resources
33% 3%

gports ?nd Family, Social Supports and
sorealion skl for Jobs _Housing

1% 1%

Key Energy and Economic Assumptions
2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

Fiscal Year Assumptions ;
Wt P Estimate  Forecast  Forecast Forecast

Crude Ol Prices

WTI (US$/bbl) 39.30 46.00 55.00 56.50

Light-Heavy Differential (US$/bbl) 11.00 14.60 14.70 15.30

WCS @ Hardisty (Cdn$/bbl) 37.20 40.70 51.60 52.70
Natural Gas Price

Alberta Reference Price (Cdn$/G)J) 2.10 2.60 2.50 2.40
Production

Conventional Crude Oil (000s barrels/day) 398 410 424 431

Raw Bitumen (000s barrels/day) 2,959 3,202 3,272 3,326

Natural Gas (billions of cubic feet) 3,888 3,921 4,017 4,055
Interest rates

3-month Canada Treasury Bills (%) 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.70

10-year Canada Bonds (%) 0.70 1.00 1.40 1.60
Exchange Rate (US¢/Cdn$) 75.5 77.4 77.8 78.2

4 Source: Government of Alberta 2021-24 Fiscal Plan, page 128.




Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 BudgetP 27

Ministry Highlights

Advanced Education

Budget 2021 will introduce performance-based funding, which was delayed because of the
COVID-19 pandemic. Funding to post-secondary institutions will be cut from 2019 levels ($5.47
billion) to $5.04 billion in 2021-22, rising slightly to $5.08 billion in 2022-23 and $5.11 billion in
2023-24.

The budget indicates that approximately 750 post-secondary education jobs will be lost but
does not include an institution-by-institution breakdown.

Agriculture and Forestry

The ministry continues to focus on attracting investment for value-added operations, the
diversification of agricultural products and broadening export opportunities. To diversify
Alberta’s agriculture industry, the government will contribute approximately $245 million ($120
million over the next three years) towards an $815 million investment to expand Alberta’s
irrigation infrastructure — through a funding partnership with the Canada Infrastructure Bank
and certain irrigation districts in Alberta.

Funding for agricultural service boards and agricultural societies will remain steady at $8.5
million and $11 million, respectively.

Children’s Services

Budget 2021 increases funding for the Alberta Child and Family Benefit, which supports low-
income parents, by $56 million or 19 per cent (from $289 million in 2020-21 to $345 million in
2021-22). This funding is then targeted to fall by $20 million over the next two years. Funding
for child intervention services is increased by $15 million (2%) in 2021-22, then targeted to fall
by $18 million over the next two years. Funding for early intervention services for children and
youth, which includes Family Resource Networks, is increased by $1 million (1%) compared to
last year's budget and will remain flat over the next two years.

The overall operating budget for the ministry will increase slightly from $1.64 billion in 2020-21
to $1.72 billion in 2021-22 and remain stable through to 2023-24.

Community and Social Services
The 2021-22 budget for Community and Social Services includes:

e $5 million to support employment for Albertans with disabilities.

o $7 million for the Civil Society Empowerment Fund to assist non-profit organizations and
charities.

e $2 million to establish four new family resource centres in St. Paul, Grande Prairie,
Medicine Hat, and Edmonton for families to help manage their Family Support for
Children with Disabilities (FSCD) and Persons with Developmental Disabilities (PDD)
services.

e %13 million for sexual assault services.




P28

Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 Budget

e Over $5 million for Family Violence Prevention programs.

e $200,000 to implement the Disclosure to Protect Against Domestic Violence (Clare's Law).
Act, which allows people at potential risk of domestic violence to obtain the information
they need to make informed choices about potentially harmful relationships.

Family and Community Support Services (FCSS) funding is maintained at $100 million and
funding for homeless and outreach support services is maintained at $193 million. Assured
Income for the Severely Handicapped (AISH) funding is increased by $69 million (5%) from
$1,290 million in 2020-21 to $1,359 million in 2021-22 and is targeted to reach $1,494 million by
2022-23. However, Employment and Income Support funding is decreased by $83 million (-9%)
from $936 million in 2020-21 to $853 million in 2021-22 and will fall a further $75 million over
the next two years. This likely reflects provincial projections that Alberta’s unemployment rate,
estimated at 11 per cent last year, will slowly decline to 7 per cent by 2023, close to its pre-
pandemic level.

The overall operating budget for the ministry totals $3.9 billion in 2021-22 and is targeted to
increase to $4 billion by 2023-24.

Culture, Multiculturalism, and Status of Women

Budget 2021 decreases the Community Facility Enhancement Program funding from $25 million
in 2020-21 to $18.5 million in 2021-22, a reduction of 26 per cent. However, this funding is
targeted to increase to $24 million in 2022-23 and 2023-24.

The new Stabilize Program will provide $15 million in one-time funding to qualifying sport, arts,
and culture organizations to offset operational costs and support re-opening when it is safe to
do so. Status of Women and Multiculturism will have $4.1 million to address equity and
inclusion issues.

The overall operating budget for the ministry will fall by 21 per cent from $230 million in 2021-
22 to $181 million in 2023-24, in part due to the conclusion of the screen-based production
grants that have been transitioned to the Film and Television Tax Credit in the Ministry of Jobs,
Economy and Innovation. However, the ministry budget also shows reduced spending for
community and voluntary support services, as well as cultural industries.

Education

Budget 2021 maintains funding for kindergarten to Grade 12 education at $8.2 billion, despite
lower-than-expected enrolment; however, schools will still face increased financial challenges
due to unexpected costs from adapting to the COVID-19 pandemic.

In 2020-21, eighteen K-12 school projects were completed at a cost of almost $400 million and
another 19 schools will be completed through 2021-22 with a cost of approximately $400

million. There is also more than $1 billion in funding for forty-three additional school projects
underway.




Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 BudgetP 2 9

The Capital Plan includes new funding for the construction and modernization of fourteen
schools as part of the overall $1.6-billion investment in education. Details on the new school
projects will be provided in the coming weeks.

The three-year Capital Plan includes $140 million for the province’s Modular Classroom
Program, an increase of $60 million in 2021-22.

Energy

The Ministry of Energy has committed to developing a liability management framework to
manage the cumulative effects of resource developments. AUMA will seek further details on
what the impact of the framework will be to municipalities, and if there will be any opportunity
to contribute to its development.

The ministry will also be implementing the natural gas strategy and vision, including capitalizing
on opportunities in liquefied natural gas and petrochemical manufacturing, and creating

conditions for development of emerging opportunities like hydrogen and the plastics circular
economy.

The ministry will loan $300 million to the Orphan Well Association, and it will also be allocating
$74 million to address orphan well abandonment, an increase of $9.5 million from Budget 2020.

Climate Change (Energy & Environment and Parks)

The Government of Alberta will continue using the Technology Innovation and Emissions
Reduction (TIER) Funds to achieve greenhouse gas emission reductions through industrial
carbon pricing regulation and an emissions trading structure for heavy emitters. TIER has been

reduced in Budget 2021; however this is because heavy emitters reduced activity in 2021 due to
COVID-19 and therefore paid less into this program.

No additional initiatives or programs specifically identified to assist municipalities with
undertaking projects to mitigate or adapt to climate change have been allocated funding in this
budget. The Municipal Climate Change Action Centre, a partnership between AUMA, Rural
Municipalities of Alberta and the Government of Alberta continues to provide funding and
support to municipalities in this area.

Environment and Parks

Environment and Parks has maintained funding for existing operations and programs. Budget

2021 includes $81 million in operating expense for Alberta Parks to address increased
recreational activity on Crown lands.

The ministry is undertaking a Digital Regulatory Assurance System over the next three years with
$13 million allocated to support this red tape reduction and system transformation initiative.
Environment and Parks is allocating $11 million for the Watershed Resiliency and Restoration
Program to improve natural watershed function to build environmental resiliency to floods and
drought. The David Thompson Corridor, plus twelve tourism and recreation support sites along




P30

Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 Budget

the highway, will receive $8.4 million to support increased demand for recreation and tourism
activities.

Health

Budget 2021 estimates the total 2021-22 operating expenses for Health, excluding costs related
to the COVID-19 pandemic response, at $21.4 billion, an increase of almost $900 million, or four
per cent from 2020-21. This includes:

o $5.4 billion for physician compensation and development, as the government continues
to manage these costs through the physician funding framework.

e $3.5 billion combined for community care, continuing care, and home care programs
representing an increase of $200 million, or six per cent over 2020-21.

o $1.9 billion for drugs and supplemental health benefit programs, an increase of almost
$200 million from 2020-21, to address higher drug costs and increased program
enrolment.

e $34 million to support mental health and rehabilitation services for children and youth.

For 2021-22, a total of $16 billion is budgeted for Alberta Health Services operations. In addition
to responding to the pandemic, strategic priorities such as the Alberta Surgical Initiative,
Continuing Care Capacity Plan, and CT and MRI Access Initiative are key priorities for the health
system this year. -

Rural healthcare and doctors are not specifically mentioned other than the Rural Health Facilities
Revitalization Program introduced in 2020-21, which includes $15 million per year for three
years.

Indigenous Relations

The ministry’s total operating expense is budgeted at $180 million for 2021-22, an increase of
$51 million from the 2020-21 forecast, reflecting the projected increase in gaming revenues
supporting the First Nations Development Fund (FNDF) Grant Program. Through Budget 2021,
the ministry will continue to provide advice, guidance, and specialized knowledge to other
ministries to enhance the inclusion of Indigenous perspectives in the development,
implementation and monitoring of policies, programs and initiatives, and support engagement
with Indigenous communities.

Infrastructure

The Ministry of Infrastructure is looking to continue leveraging public-private partnerships to
deliver on the construction of government-owned facilities. In 2021-22, $634.9 million will be
allocated to the construction of health facilities, including $212.6 million for the Calgary Cancer
Centre. Over $763 million will be allocated to the construction of school facilities, including
$89.5 million for the Modular Classroom Program and $123.7 million will be allocated to the
construction of government facilities, including $50.1 million for the Red Deer Justice Centre.




Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 Budgetp 31

Jobs, Economy and Innovation

Formerly known as the Ministry of Economic Development, Trade and Tourism, the newly named
Jobs, Economy and Innovation (JEI) is responsible to lead the execution of Alberta’s Recovery
Plan and will be provided $362 million to support this plan. JEI has been tasked to implement
recovery supports for Alberta’s tourism sector and develop and implement a 10-year Tourism
Strategy with Travel Alberta to position the sector for growth.

The ministry is also responsible for the Alberta Film and Television Tax Credit (FTTC). In 2020
AUMA passed a resolution calling on the province to enhance the FTTC to be more competitive
with other provinces to attract more screen industry production to the province. According to
the ministry’s own 2020 figures, every dollar provided in tax credits resulted in four dollars
invested in productions supporting the Alberta economy.

The ministry will be developing the $166 million Innovation Employment Grant to incentivize job
creation from small and medium sized businesses investing in research and development jobs.

JEl is also leading a Technology and Innovation Strategy that is aiming to attract and retain a
future-ready workforce, attract the most capital investment in Canada by 2030 and drive growth
in entrepreneurship and priority sectors. As in past years, Budget 2021 indicates that the
province is developing a broadband strategy to close the divide between rural and urban
communities and strengthen Alberta's economic development and job creation potential with
increased connectivity province wide. No specific dollar amount is allocated to this strategy.

In terms of support for regional economic development, last year the province reduced funding
to Regional Economic Development Alliances (REDAs) by half. Budget 2021 will deliver $50,000
to each of the nine REDAs in 2021-22 and 2022-23. Unfortunately, the Community and Regional
Economic Support (CARES) program was paused in 2020-21 and there are no plans to fund the
program during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Justice and Solicitor General
The 2021 budget for Justice and Solicitor General includes:

e $10 million for the Rural Alberta Provincial Integrated Defense Response, which expands
the authorities of peace officers to respond to calls and assist police services in
emergency situations.

o $43.7 million in funding for Alberta Law Enforcement Response Teams to deal with and

investigate child pornography, gang violence, drug trafficking, stalking, and domestic
violence.

To help address criminal court delays, the ministry has developed a staged strategy for the

hiring of 50 new prosecutors, with 20 prosecutors hired in 2020-21, 20 hired in 2021-22 and 10
hired in 2022-23.

A new service delivery model for victims of crime is being established, with the current financial
benefits program to be replaced with a new victim assistance program launching in 2021. The




P32

Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 Budget

ministry budget shows $63 million available annually from the Victims of Crime and Public
Safety Fund over the next three years; however, it is unclear what amount will be used for the
new victim assistance program now that the use of these funds has been expanded beyond
solely serving victims of crime.

Funding for both the Municipal Policing Assistance Grant and the Police Officer Grant remain
flat from last year's budget at $59.2 million and $30.0 million, respectively. The budget also
reflects the $26.7 million in revenue to be collected through the new police funding model in
2021. These funds will be used to hire 55 regular members and 42 support staff for the RCMP.

The ministry's operating budget for 2021-22 is $1.35 billion, which is $65 million or 5 per cent
lower than in 2021-21 and is targeted to rise slightly to $1.36 billion in 2022-23 and $1.37 billion
in 2023-24.

Labour and Immigration

The ministry’s operating expense forecast is $714 million, reflecting a $506 million increase from
2020-21 in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Budget 2021 includes $127.5 million for the
Alberta Jobs Now program. The program will provide a grant to eligible employers to train and
hire new employees to offer Albertans opportunities to enhance their skills and encourage
employers to create jobs to get unemployed Albertans back to work.

The Alberta government is also developing the Alberta Advantage Immigration Strategy to spur
job-creating entrepreneurship, tech start-up ventures and boost economic growth in rural
communities. The new streams will be focused on the International Graduate Entrepreneurs,
Foreign Graduate Start-Up Visas, Rural Entrepreneurs and Rural Renewal.

Municipal Affairs
Municipal Affairs’ 2021 Business Plan outlines several key objectives such as:
«  Working with communities to manage the impacts of the pandemic.
»  Streamlining legislation to encourage economic growth, including a review of land-use
planning and development processes and timelines.
« Implementing assessment and tax incentives to encourage new investment in the oil and
gas sector.
+ Increasing Alberta Community Partnership funding from $16.5 million to $25.4 million in
order to support initiatives related to the Senate Election Act and Referendum Act.
«  Removing regulatory requirements and oversight in the New Home Buyer Protection Act
to reduce costs for builders and condominium building owners.

Ministry expense is budgeted to be $1.8 billion, $300 million higher than Budget 2020 primarily
due to the $233 million increase in MSI and expense for the Alberta Emergency Management
Agency related to the pandemic. However, looking ahead to the next two years, the ministry’s
budget is reduced by almost $800 million to $1.03 billion following the significant reductions in
MSI.




Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 Budgetp 3 3

AUMA also learned that the Government of Alberta is considering options for additional funding
to help reduce the burden on municipalities and agencies that run 911 centres. This is in
response to a 2020 resolution passed by AUMA members that call on the province to increase
the 911 levy payable by wireless device users from 44 cents to 97 cents.

Red Tape Reduction

The Alberta government continues to push forward on its red tape reduction goals. Every
ministry has red tape reduction targets highlighted in the ministry’s business plan. $2.4 million is
allocated to support corporate planning and red tape reduction initiatives to guide the

ministries’ work. The Province plans to reduce Alberta’s public services by about 7.7 percent over
four years from 2019-20 to 2022-23.

Seniors and Housing

Budget 2021 provides a $16 million reinstatement to the Rental Assistance program in 2021-22,
which will help more Albertans in need of affordable housing. In recognition of Alberta’s
changing demographics, $0.9 million is allocated in 2021-22 for community-based investments
to address the needs of a growing seniors’ population by funding coordinated actions that focus
on priority issues, such as social supports for aging in community, elder abuse prevention,
caregivers, age-friendly communities, and transportation. The ministry’s operating budget for

2021-22 is $673 million and is targeted to rise to $699 million in 2022-23 and $702 million in
2023-24.

The 2021-24 Capital Plan continues with the significant reductions to provincial investments in
affordable housing initiated in last year's budget, with total capital funding falling from $141
million in 2021-22 to $69 million in 2022-23 and $29 million in 2023-24, which represents a
reduction of 79 per cent over two years.

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

Capital Plan Details ($ millions) Budnef  Budget  Toaet Target

Family and Community Housing Development

and Renewal _ _ 3 ' ! _ 1 -
Indigenous Housing Capital 12 10 10 10
New Affordable and Specialized Housing 23 - 30 27 25
Seniors’ Housing Development and Renewal 93 56 24 -

Service Alberta

The ministry’s 2021 operating expense forecast is $12 million higher than Budget 2020 due to
increased package delivery services due to the COVID-19 pandemic and priority Information
Technology projects for cloud services. The ministry plans to introduce several red tape
reduction initiatives, including a comprehensive review of the Business Corporation Act and a
Digital Strategy, which will reduce costs while providing enhanced access to Albertans. The
ministry is also evaluating the sale of Corporate, Land Title, and Personal Property Registries to
create efficiencies and promote effectiveness. Service Alberta continues to develop a broadband
strategy to close the divide between rural and urban internet access.




P34

Report | Preliminary Analysis of the Government of Alberta’s 2021 Budget

Transportation

The Ministry of Transportation budget includes $904.9 million for rings roads, new construction,
and expansion of provincial highways. AUMA members will also benefit from $73.4 million under
GreenTRIP-and the Strategic Transportation Infrastructure Program (STIP) in 2021-22. The
ministry also budgeted $25 million in provincial funding and $459.6 million in federal ICIP
funding for light rail transit (LRT) expansion in Calgary and Edmonton.

In 2021-22, Transportation allocated $126.4 million under the provincial Water for Life, Alberta

Municipal Water Wastewater Program and First Nations Water Tie-In programs, and the federal
Clean Water Wastewater Fund.

Transportation also sees increasing amounts for construction of key roads and bridge projects
including $100 million for bridge construction, $10 million for twinning Highway 3 between
Taber and Burdett and $15 million for the La Crete Bridge project.

2020-21  2021-22

Capital Plan Details ($ millions) Budget Budget

Capital Investments - 862 1926
Capital Maintenance and Renewal 411 571




A ¢ el
A J 3
, b

CROWSNEST P S

%@/ g /waq d

March 1, 2021

Honourable Kaycee Madu

Minister of Justice and Solicitor General
424 Legislature Building

10800 — 97 Avenue

Edmonton, AB

TSK 2B6

Dear Minister,

Re: President’s Summit on Policing

On behalf of the Council of the Municipality of Crowsnest Pass, | am writing concerning the
recent President’s Summit on Policing. Our Council does not support The Province of Alberta’s
initiative to replace the RCMP with an Alberta Provincial Police force.

We do not understand why the Province would forge ahead with this process when the Fair
Deal Panel survey results clearly showed that 65% of respondents did not support this idea.
These are tangible results from a provincial survey which need to be recognized by the Province
as a negative response, and a clear indicator by the people of this Province that the majority is
not in favor of a Provincial Police Force.

The staggering costs to implement an initiative of this nature, should be enough of a deterrent
to even consider proceeding. Municipalities across this Province are struggling to determine
how they will absorb the costs for the existing Police Funding Model and should not be
expected to consider facing additional expenses for an initiative that is unwanted and appears
to have no ceiling where potential costs are concerned.

P.0. BOX 600 CROWSNEST PASS, ALBERTA TOK OEO p 403 562-8833 f 403-563-5474 crowsnestpass.com

P35

.



P36

Finally, we would like to reiterate that the Municipality of Crowsnest Pass is pleased with the
level of service provided through our local RCMP. We cannot presume to speak for other
communities in Alberta, however we find that the unigue circumstances due to our location has
fostered highly collaborative relationships between the detachments serving southeastern
British Columbia and those serving our neighboring communities in southwestern Alberta. We
cannot foresee that the dollars invested would result in an increased level of policing over and
above the service we receive now.

We respectfully request that you reconsider replacing the RCMP with an Alberta Provincial
Police Force and consider working with the RCMP to improve the service where required.

Sincerely,

Mayor Blair Painter

Municipality of Crowsnest Pass
403-563-0700
blair.painter@crowsnestpass.com

cc: RMA Membership
AUMA Membership

P.0. BOX 600 CROWSNEST PASS, ALBERTA TOK OEO p 403 562-8833 f 403-563-5474 crowsnestpass.com



